
138 S. Brandon St. • Fallbrook CA 92028 • 760-731-9187 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY 
November 14, 2018 

6:00 PM 

AT 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
FALLBROOK WELLNESS CENTER 

COMMUNITY ROOM 
1636 EAST MISSION ROAD  

FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, November 14, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
Director Howard Salmon will join the meeting remotely by teleconference pursuant to government Code Section 
54953 from the following location: 1674 Baja Vista Dr. Fallbrook 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 
set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 
finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 
was continued from an earlier meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 
earlier meeting. 

 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District.  For the 
record, please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board President or the 
recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
D. PRESENTATIONS 
 D1. Gordon Tinker and Stephen Abbott’s Service on FRHD’s board 
 
E. CONSENT ITEMS 
 E1. Approval of September 2018 Financial Statements 
 E2. Minutes of October 3, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
 E3. Minutes of October 10, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
 E4. Minutes of October 30, 2018 Special Board Meeting 
 
F. REPORTS 

F1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 
F2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 
F3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 
F4. Chief Executive Officer – Bobbi Palmer MBA MSW 
F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 
G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

G1. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 423 – The Intention To Transition From At-
Large To District-Based Elections Pursuant To Elections Code 10010(E)(J)(A) – 1st 
Reading 

 
H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 
  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 



 

 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 2:00-2:30pm, Fallbrook 
Wellness Center, Health Under One Roof, Rm 2,1636 E. Mission Rd. Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee of the Whole meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 
5:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd. 
Fallbrook 

• Christmas Parade – 1st Saturday, December 1, 5:00pm – Main Ave., 
Downtown Fallbrook 

• Woman of Wellness meeting – 1st Thursday, January 3, 6pm – Fallbrook 
Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Wellness Advisory Committee meeting – 2nd Wednesday, January 9, 5:00-
6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., 
Fallbrook 

• Board of Directors Workshop – Saturday, January 12, 8:00am – Fallbrook 
Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 
meeting – 3rd Wednesday, January 16, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Wellness 
Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
H2. Next Regular Board meeting/Swearing-In of New Board Members/Election of 

Officers of the Board – Wednesday, December 12, 6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, 
Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
I. CLOSED SESSION 

I1. Personnel Matters Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Annual Evaluation of 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 
K. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 K1. Chief Executive Officer Contract Approval 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration Office on Friday, November 9, 2018. The 

American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied 
the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior 
to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 
 

Board Secretary/Clerk 



Page 3 of 72



Page 4 of 72



Page 5 of 72



Page 6 of 72



Page 7 of 72



Page 8 of 72



Page 9 of 72



Page 10 of 72



Page 11 of 72



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 29,432 38,328 42,990 98,729 710,000 475,000 47,635 415,000 22,500 25,510 88,967 62,285 2,056,376
403 · Interest / Dividends 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,416 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000

Total 400. · District 39,849 48,745 53,406 109,146 720,416 485,416 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,181,376

460 · Lease Income
460.01 · Med+ Urgent Care (formerly A+) 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total Income 44,649 53,545 58,206 113,946 725,216 490,216 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,210,176

Gross Profit 44,649 53,545 58,206 113,946 725,216 490,216 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,210,176

Expense
500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead

500.10 · Salaries 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 275,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 23,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 1,507
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 21,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 18,500
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 18,975
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 8,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,850
500.23 · General Counsel 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 3,650
02 · I.T. and Website services 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
03 · Refreshments 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 15,700
05 · LAFCO Admin fees 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 1,367
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 94,217

500.27 · Depreciation 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 5,151
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 38,250
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 102,750
500.33 · Copier Lease 833 833 833 833 833 833 834 833 834 833 834 834 10,000
500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 10,000
500.40 · Video/AV Equipment 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
580.01 · General Election 0 0 16,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,500

Total 500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead 58,129 66,979 77,129 58,129 58,129 60,629 58,130 58,129 60,630 58,129 58,130 60,630 732,900

570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road
570.02 · Gas & Electric 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
570.03 · Water 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
570.04 · Waste Management 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000
570.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.07 · Custodial Services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
570.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
570.25 · Office Expense

25.02 · I.T. & Website Services 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
25.04 · Office Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
25.06 · Independent Contract Services 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000

Total 570.25 · Office Expense 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

570.29 · Dist. Promotions & Publications 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
570.32 · Consultant Fees 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000

Total 570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 128,000

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4Page 12 of 72



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road
590.01 · Property Manager 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 25,000
590.02 · Gas & Electric 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 20,000
590.03 · Water 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
590.04 · Waste Management 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 1,700
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 10,050
590.07 · Custodial Services 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 9,360
590.08 · Elevator 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 400
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500

Total 590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 118,010

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,625 0 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 10,500
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 18,428 0 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 45,990
600.05 · Community Health Systems, Inc. 26,250 0 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 105,000
600.06 · Fallbrook Land Conservancy 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 19,688 0 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 78,750
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 18,769 0 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 75,075
600.09 · Fallbrook Union  H. S. District 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 20,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 20,738 0 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 82,950
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 54,882 0 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 219,527
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 50,000 0 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 125,600
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 17,063 0 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 68,250
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,428 0 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 9,711
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 8,925
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 3,872 0 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 15,488
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 2,363 0 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 9,450
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 25,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 6,300 0 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 25,200

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 258,403 0 0 0 217,338 0 0 242,338 0 0 217,338 0 935,416

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · Med+ Urgent Care 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total Expense 347,032 97,480 107,630 88,630 305,967 91,130 78,631 320,967 81,131 78,630 295,968 81,131 1,974,326

Net Ordinary Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 25,316 419,249 399,086 (20,579) 104,450 (48,215) (42,703) (196,584) (8,429) 235,850

Net Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 25,316 419,249 399,086 (20,579) 104,450 (48,215) (42,703) (196,584) (8,429) 235,850

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4 Page 13 of 72



Report 5
Page 14 of 72



Report 6Page 15 of 72



Page 16 of 72



Page 17 of 72



Page 18 of 72



Report 9
Page 19 of 72



Report 9Page 20 of 72



Report 9
Page 21 of 72



Report 9
Page 22 of 72



Report 10
Page 23 of 72



Report 10
Page 24 of 72



Report 10
Page 25 of 72



Report 10
Page 26 of 72



Page 27 of 72



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
Wednesday, October 3, 2018 at 5:00 P.M. 

Community Meeting Room, 1636 E. Mission Road, Fallbrook CA 92028 
 
Committee Members Present:  Chair Barbara Mroz, Vice Chair William Leach, Howard Salmon and 
Gordon Tinker. 
Staff Members:  Chief Executive Officer Bobbi Palmer, Administrative Assistant Linda Bannerman 
Accountant Kathy Bogle and Bookkeeper Wendy Lyon 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Barbara Mroz at 5:07 p.m. 
 

2. Public Comments 
None 

3. Review of Financial Statements for August 2018 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of August 2018 to July 2018 

2) Income Statement for the Month Ended August 31, 2018 & Fiscal Year to Date 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – July 2018 through August 2018 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2018 through June 2019 
All of the above listed financial statements were reviewed for any variances.  It was noted 
that the American Express expenditures had increased prior to the groundbreaking for the 
new property on East Mission Road. Discussion ensued regarding reasons for the 
expenditures and limits on credit cards.   
Discussion ensued regarding the use of temporary employees for special projects.  
CEO Bobbi Palmer said representatives from Blue Zones can be here again for the 
workshop scheduled on the second Saturday in January 2019.   

 

5) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Statement – August 2018 
The balance in the LAIF account was $1,472,559 as of the end of August 2018. 
 

6) CalTRUST Statement – August 2018 
The balance in the CalTRUST account as of the end of August was $6,751,576. 
 

7) Property Tax Revenue – Fiscal Year to Date 
$11,304 was received in the month of August 2018.  CEO Bobbi Palmer said with new 
construction in our District, an anticipated 8 percent increase in property taxes is 
expected for our District.   There was a question regarding a holiday event at the wellness 
center property.  It was noted that the District will participate in the holiday parade. 
Regarding revenue, it is anticipated that a cell phone tower will be installed on the E. 

Page 28 of 72



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Mission Property with a payment of $20,000 to the District.  There was also discussion 
regarding the installation of a fence, gate and lighting for the island dividing the 
entrance/exit to the E. Mission property. 
  

8) Check Detail Report – August 2018 
This report is provided as information at each Finance Committee meeting. 
 

9) Checkbook Report – July 2018 
This report is new and therefore covers the month of July 2018.  It details how funds are 
spent within the Community Investment Fund and the Operations Fund. 
 

10) Review of Annual Audit Draft 
A draft of the annual audit was provided for review by the Finance Committee.  It will be 
taken to the full board at the October meeting. 

 
4. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 

 

 

      
Barbara Mroz, Chair 
Finance Committee 
 

 

 

Page 29 of 72



Page 30 of 72



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
       

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, October 10, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
Fallbrook Wellness Center, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Board Members present: Directors Howard Salmon, Stephen Abbott, William Leach and Barbara Mroz 
Board Members absent:   Director Gordon Tinker 
Also present: Chief Executive Officer Bobbi Palmer and Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson 
Attending via teleconference for the Audit Report only was Craig Fechter, Owner of Fechter & Company. 
 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Vice-President Howard Salmon called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
 None 
 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr. Armando Telles introduced himself and stated he is a candidate for the FRHD Board of 
Directors in the upcoming November election.  He noted the presence of the other candidates. 
 
Director William Leach recognized the FRHD staff and thanked them for all their efforts in doing a 
good job for the District. 

 
D. CONSENT ITEMS 
 D1. Approval of August 2018 Financial Statements 
 D2. Minutes of September 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
 D3. Minutes of September 12, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
  There were no items requested to be pulled for further discussion. 

Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Mroz to approve the 
Consent Items as presented. 
Motion carried 4-0.  1 Absent 

 
E. REPORTS 

E1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 
Committee Chair Barbara Mroz provided the report for the Finance Committee meeting of 
October 3, 2018.  She said the financial reports were through August of 2018.  She noted 
that the American Express expenditure had increased prior to the groundbreaking for the 
new property on East Mission Road.  Discussion ensued regarding reasons for the 
expenditures and limits on credit cards. There was also discussion regarding the use of 
temporary employees for special projects.  Bobbi Palmer shared there will be a workshop 
on the second Saturday in January 2019 and representatives from the Blue Zones Project 
can be here again during that time. 
The LAIF account balance was $1,472.559 as of the end of August 2018.  The balance in 
the CalTRUST account was $6,751.576.  Property tax revenue for the month of August 

Page 31 of 72



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

totaled $11,304 and fiscal year-to-date it was $40,338. CEO Bobbi Palmer said an 
anticipated eight percent increase in property taxes is projected.  Regarding revenue, it is 
also expected that a cell phone tower will be installed and camouflaged on the 1636 E. 
Mission Road property for which the District will receive $20,000. There was a question 
regarding a possible holiday event at the wellness center property.  It was noted that the 
District will participate in the holiday parade again this year.  There was also discussion 
regarding the installation of a fence, gate and lighting for the island dividing the 
entrance/exit to the Wellness Center. 
Lastly, the final draft of the 2018-2019 Independent Audit was reviewed.  It will go to the 
full Board of Directors meeting for action. 

E2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 
Director Salmon said he had no report at this time.  ACHD will be monitoring the 
November mid-term election as it impacts the direction for the future.  He also reminded 
everyone to turn back their clocks one hour this weekend.  

E3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 
Director Abbott had no report, just a suggestion to replace the existing clock in the 
Community Room.  He said there is a need to evaluate the many ideas and plans for the 
development of the Wellness Center, and the new board will be making those decisions. 

E4. Chief Executive Officer – Bobbi Palmer MBA MSW 
CEO Bobbi Palmer discussed the Wellness Advisory Committee and how it will assist the 
Board of Directors in making decisions about implementation of ideas and plans for the 
Wellness Center.  She said we have now moved into Phase II of the Conceptual 
Framework from Stanford Social Innovation.  In past meetings, the CEO explained that 
the Stanford University Collective Impact Strategy Model was being used as a guide to 
assure community input as the Wellness Center is developed.   

E5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 
Counsel Jackson said he had shared with Directors via e-mail information regarding 
Assembly Bill 3239.  He said effective January 2019, the Board, with justification, can 
pass a resolution allowing a stipend for up to 6 days and up to $600 per month.  A 
mechanism will also then be in place for an ordinance, as outlined in the Water Code, 
allowing for up to a five percent annual increase in the base compensation or stipend per 
day.  He can discuss this further when the new Board is seated. 
 
He said he continues to work with the attorney for Community Health Systems (CHS) the 
operator of the hospital until it closed, regarding medical records and patients’ access to 
them.   
 

F. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
F1. FY 2017-2018 Independent Auditor’s Report – Fechter & Company Certified Public 

Accountants (item called after Item C on the agenda, as auditor was on phone standby) 
Craig Fechter joined the meeting via telephone and reviewed the 2017-2018 Independent 
Auditor’s Report.  He said all information was verified and noted that the District had major 
events to consider including following up and verification of the transactions on the sale of 
the hospital and the purchase of new property.  There was also verification of the 
Community Health Contracts transactions.  There were no negative findings on any of the 
transactions.  It was a clean audit with no recommendations to the District for changes in 
internal controls.  Mr. Fechter offered at no additional charge, a workshop for board 
members to discuss the audit process and recommended internal controls.  The CEO 
suggested that might take place near the end of our fiscal year – perhaps in May as we 
will have new members on our board and it will be just prior to the next audit. 
Lastly, Director Salmon asked Director Abbott to discuss the reason for our current large 
balances in our bank accounts.  Director Abbott said that up until the end of 2014, the 

Page 32 of 72



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

District leased the operations of the hospital to a separate entity.  The District realized the 
need for monies to be available for a lease termination contingency fund, or what would 
be needed during the negotiated settlement for undepreciated assets.  He commended 
Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson for a successful negotiation.  The next Board of Directors 
will be tasked with determining what is spent for the new Wellness Center. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Leach, seconded by Director Abbott to accept the 
2017-2018 Independent Auditors Report as presented. 
Motion carried.  4-0.  1 absent. 
 

G. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 G1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  G1a. Item(s) for future board agendas  
  G1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 
– 3rd Wednesday, October 17, 10:00-11:30am, Fallbrook Wellness Center, 
Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Fallbrook Harvest Faire 2018 – Sunday, October 28, 2018, 9:00am-4:00pm, 
Main Avenue, Downtown Fallbrook 

• Woman of Wellness – Thursday, November 1, 6pm – Fallbrook Wellness 
Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 2:00-3:00pm, Fallbrook 
Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd. Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee of the Whole meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 
5:00pm Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd. 
Fallbrook 

• Wellness Advisory Committee meeting – 2nd Wednesday, November 14, 5:00-
6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., 
Fallbrook 

 
G2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, November 14, 2018, Fallbrook Wellness 

Center, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook. 
 

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 6:47 p.m. 
 
H. CLOSED SESSION 

H1. Personnel Matters Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Evaluation of Chief 
Executive Officer 

H2. Conference with Legal Counsel Concerning Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Gov’t Code 
54956.9(d)(2) – one case 

 
I. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 
The meeting was reconvened into Open Session at 7:30 pm.  As to Item H1, the Board approved the 
evaluation template. The Board directed counsel to take appropriate action as to Item H2. 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 pm. 
 
 
                
Gordon Tinker, President      Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 33 of 72



Page 34 of 72



Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, October 30, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
Fallbrook Wellness Center, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Board Members present: Directors Howard Salmon, Stephen Abbott, William Leach, Gordon Tinker and 
Barbara Mroz 
Board Members absent:   Director Bill Leach 
Also present: Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson; Special Counsel Maria Roberts 
 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Gordon Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
None. 
 

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 

 
D. CLOSED SESSION 

D1. Conference with Legal Counsel Concerning Exposure to Litigation per Gov’t Code 
 54956.9(d)(2) – one case 

D2. Personnel Matters pursuant to Gov’t Code 54957(b) – CEO Annual Evaluation 
 

E. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 

The meeting was reconvened into Open Session at 8:05 p.m.  Director Abbott excused himself at 6:55 
p.m. for another commitment. 
 
As to Item D1, the Board directed counsel to take appropriate action. As to Item D2, the Board reaffirmed 
usage of the evaluation template approved at the October meeting. 
 
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:06 pm 
 
 
      
Gordon Tinker, President 

 
 

      
Stephen Abbott, Secretary 
 

Page 35 of 72



Page 36 of 72



Page 37 of 72



Page 38 of 72



Page 39 of 72



Page 40 of 72



Page 41 of 72



Page 42 of 72



Page 43 of 72



Page 44 of 72



 

A note to our readers… 

During the Legislature’s recess, HBE will be 

publishing This Week on an as-needed basis. 

The Legislature returns to Sacramento for 

an organizational convening on Monday, 

December 3. 

INFORMATION & INSIGHTS FROM HURST BROOKS ESPINOSA  WEEK OF OCTOBER 15, 2018 

LAO Suggests “Rethinking the 1991 Realignment” 

This week, the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) released 

“Rethinking the 1991 Realignment,” a report that examines 

the effects of recent changes to 1991 Realignment, including 

the impact of the 2017 agreement on a Maintenance of Effort 

(MOE) for the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program. 

The report outlines key historic fiscal and programmatic 

changes and discusses how these changes generally 

increased program costs and expanded program 

responsibilities. It also evaluates the benefit of 1991 

Realignment to the state and counties based on long-

standing LAO realignment principles and provides options to the Legislature for improvements.  

Cutting to the chase, the LAO determines that 1991 Realignment no longer meets many LAO 

realignment principles. Specifically, that counties’ shares of program costs no longer reflect their 

ability to control costs in programs as changes in entitlement program requirements over time have 

limited counties’ ability to control program costs. The LAO finds that realignment revenues are 

insufficient to cover costs over time and that counties lack adequate flexibility to respond to 

changing needs and requirements. Finally, the LAO notes that changes to 1991 Realignment over 

time has resulted in a revenue structure that is extremely complex, making it difficult to track the 

flow and use of funds. 

The LAO offers suggestions to better align the fiscal structure of 1991 Realignment to LAO principles 

and to achieve benefits for both the state and counties. One option the LAO offers for consideration 

is changing cost-sharing ratios to address concerns about the IHSS program; counties’ share of cost 

could be reduced for IHSS and swapped for an increased share of cost in another program, such as 

felony Incompetent to Stand Trial commitments. The LAO offers two ways to better align realignment 

revenues with program costs: (1) update counties’ growth allocations for health and mental health 

responsibilities, either through existing or new resources, or (2) increase funding to address 

shortfalls in realigned programs. Finally, the LAO suggests additional improvements, including 

providing constitutional mandate protection similar to that provided for 2011 Realignment, provide 

an opportunity to restore base funding for all programs, allow Boards of Supervisors greater flexibility 

to transfer revenues among accounts, do a better job tracking realignment revenues and costs, 

encourage counties to maintain reserves, and consider the long-term impact of policy decisions on 

ability to control program costs. 

Worth Noting: Los Angeles 

Times Series on Future of 

California 

Check out the Los Angeles Times series 

“The Future of California,” a four-part 

examination of the challenges facing our 

next Governor. Thorough, interesting 

articles focused on the economy, natural 

disasters, demographics, and work 

outline some of the most vexing issues 

facing state leaders in the years to come.   

Page 45 of 72

https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2018/3886/1991-realignment-101518.pdf
http://www.latimes.com/projects/la-pol-ca-next-california/


Information & Insights from Hurst Brooks Espinosa  Week of October 15, 2018 

Page 2 

This report is particularly timely, given that the Department of Finance is required to provide a report 

to the Legislature on the impacts of the recent changes to 1991 Realignment with the Governor’s 

budget in January 2019.  

“Split Roll” Initiative Qualifies 

Secretary of State Alex Padilla announced this week that proponents of the so-called “split roll” 

initiative collected enough signatures to qualify the measure for the November 2020 ballot. The 

initiative – called “The California Schools and Local Communities Funding Act of 2018” – provides 

that commercial and industrial properties be assessed at fair market value instead of the Proposition 

13 assessment methodology of purchase price plus an annual inflator (capped at 2 percent). Small 

businesses, agricultural land, and $500,000 in tangible personal property (business equipment) 

would be exempted from tax. Revenues generated by the measure – estimated by the Legislative 

Analyst’s Office at $6.5 to $10.5 billion – would be allocated to schools, community colleges, and 

local governments.  

SCOTUS Declines Lead Paint Petition 

On October 15, the United States Supreme Court denied the petition from lead paint manufacturers 

to review a California court’s decision holding Sherwin-Williams, Con-Agra, and NL Industries 

responsible for lead paint contamination in homes. The paint manufacturers are now responsible for 

hundreds of millions of dollars to fund lead paint remediation programs in ten California 

jurisdictions, the specifics of which are being debated in court. 

NPLH NOFA Released 

The Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) announced the release of the 

Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for $400 million in No Place Like Home (NPLH) Competitive 

Allocation funds. Materials and the application are available on the NPLH program website and 

applications are due to HCD no later than 5 p.m. on January 15, 2019. 

Reminder – Opportunity to Comment on Process for Round Two of Proposition 47 

Recidivism Reduction Grants 

As noted last week, additional information is now available on the proposed process for developing 

the request for proposal (RFP) for the second round of Proposition 47 recidivism reduction grants. 

The Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) is seeking public comment about modest 

technical revisions being proposed to the Round 1 RFP that will be used to solicit the second round 

of grant applications. Secondly, the BSCC is soliciting input on two options for determining eligibility 

for the second round of grants. Written public comment on both the proposed RFP changes and 

applicant eligibility must be submitted via email on or before October 28, 2018.  

We encourage all interested parties to review the informational memo and to consider submitting 

comments on either or both aspects of the RFP process as detailed above. The Board will consider 

RFP changes, determination of eligibility criteria, and all related public comment at its next meeting 

scheduled for November 8. 

Page 46 of 72

https://www.oag.ca.gov/system/files/initiatives/pdfs/17-0055%20%28Funding%20for%20Schools%20and%20Communities%29_2.pdf
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/nplh.shtml#funding
http://www.bscc.ca.gov/downloads/Prop%2047%20RFP%20Memo%20-%209.28.18.pdf
http://www.bscc.ca.gov/downloads/Prop%2047%20RFP%20DRAFT%209.28.18.pdf
http://www.bscc.ca.gov/downloads/Prop%2047%20Eligible%20Public%20Agency%20Applicants%20-%209.28.18.pdf
mailto:Prop47@bscc.ca.gov


Information & Insights from Hurst Brooks Espinosa  Week of October 15, 2018 

Page 3 

Hearings During the Legislative Recess 

The following hearings of note that will delve in to a range of diverse policy issues are scheduled over 

the fall. 

Date / Location Committee Topic 

Tuesday, October 23 

Sacramento 

Joint Hearing of the Assembly 

Human Services Committee 

and the Assembly Select 

Committee on Foster Care 

Informational Hearing – Addressing 

the Behavioral Needs of Children in 

Care: Mental Health Services for 

Foster Youth 

Wednesday, October 24 

Santa Cruz 

Joint Hearing of Assembly 

Select Committee on Coastal 

Protection and Access to 

Natural Resources and 

Select Committee on Waste 

Reduction and Recycling in 

21st Century California 

Informational Hearing – Plastic 

Pollution’s Effect on the California 

Coast 

Wednesday, October 24 

Concord 

Assembly Select Committee 

on Intellectual and 

Developmental Disabilities 

Informational Hearing – Concord: 

Living with Intellectual and 

Developmental Disabilities 

Friday, October 26 

Duarte 

Joint Hearing of Assembly 

Privacy and Consumer 

Protection Committee and 

Assembly Select Committee 

on Domestic Violence 

Informational Hearing – Highlighting 

the Intersection Between Technology 

and Domestic Violence 

Wednesday, November 7  

Los Angeles 

Assembly Committee on 

Long-Term Care 

Informational Hearing – Reimagining 

the Older Californians Act: Changing 

the Paradigms of Service Delivery 

Tuesday, November 13  

Riverside 

Senate Select Committee on 

Career Technology and the 

New Economy 

Informational Hearing – How do we 

best synchronize Career Technical 

Education by Community Colleges 

and the K-12 System 

Thursday, November 15  

Sacramento 

Senate Budget and Fiscal 

Review Subcommittee No. 3 

on Health and Human 

Services 

Informational Hearing – The State of 

Long-Term Services and Supports for 

California Seniors 

 

Please feel free to contact any one of us at Hurst Brooks Espinosa with questions … 

JEAN HURST 

916-272-0010 | jkh@hbeadvocacy.com  

KELLY BROOKS 

916-272-0011 | kbl@hbeadvocacy.com  

ELIZABETH ESPINOSA 

916-272-0012 | ehe@hbeadvocacy.com  

 

Page 47 of 72

mailto:jkh@hbeadvocacy.com
mailto:kbl@hbeadvocacy.com
mailto:ehe@hbeadvocacy.com


Page 48 of 72



Page 49 of 72



Page 50 of 72



Page 51 of 72



Page 52 of 72



Page 53 of 72



Page 54 of 72



Page 55 of 72



Page 56 of 72



Page 57 of 72



Page 58 of 72



Page 59 of 72



Page 60 of 72



Page 61 of 72



Page 62 of 72



Page 63 of 72



Page 64 of 72



Page 65 of 72



Page 66 of 72



Page 67 of 72



Page 68 of 72



Page 69 of 72



 

1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 423 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FALLBROOK REGIONAL 

HEALTH DISTRICT THE INTENTION TO TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO 

DISTRICT-BASED ELECTIONS PURSUANT TO ELECTIONS CODE 10010(e)(J)(A) 

 WHEREAS, FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT ("FRHD") is a California 

health care district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, 

particularly the Local Health Care District Law, constituting Division 23 of the Health and Safety 

Code of the State of California, and more particularly, Health and Safety Code §§ 32000 et seq. 

(the "Law");  

 WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) is currently composed of five (5) directors 

who are voted into office by an "at-large" election method, meaning one in which the voters of the 

entire jurisdiction elect the members to the governing body;  

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to transition the method of election for the FRHD Board 

from an "at-large" method to a "by-zone" or “district-based" election method, meaning a method 

of electing members to the governing body of FRHD in which the candidate must reside within an 

election district that is a divisible part of FRHD's jurisdiction and is elected only by voters residing 

within that election district;  

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to effectuate this transition from at-large to district-based 

elections in order to ensure that FRHD maintains an election method that does not impair the 

ability of any protected class to elect candidates of its choice or its ability to influence the outcome 

of an election, as a result of the dilution or the abridgement of the rights of voters, who are members 

of a protected class, as defined by Elections Code section 14026;  

 WHEREAS, this Resolution is expressly intended to address the requirements of Elections 

Code section 10010(e)(3)(A), and thereby outline FRHD's intention to transition from at-large to 

district-based elections, outline specific steps that FRHD will undertake to facilitate this transition, 

and set forth an estimated time frame for doing so; and, 

 WHEREAS, under the Law, FRHD must first hold a public hearing prior to adoption of a 

resolution moving to divisional elections and must follow the process laid out under the Law for a 

transition to district-based elections;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, this Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District does 

hereby resolve: 

 Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 Section 2. The Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to confer with the 

district's legal counsel and hire independent consultants whom the Chief Executive Officer deems 

necessary and appropriate in order to begin the transition from at-large to district-based elections. 

 Section 3. The Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to coordinate and 

effectuate outreach to the public, including to non-English speaking communities, to explain the 

districting process and to encourage public participation. 

Page 70 of 72



 

2 

 

 Section 4. Pursuant to Elections Code section 10010, the Chief Executive Officer is hereby 

authorized and directed to propose a schedule for no less than two (2) public hearings, at which 

the public shall be invited to provide input regarding the composition of FRHD before FRHD 

draws any draft maps of the proposed boundaries for district elections.  These public hearings shall 

be held over a period of no more than thirty (30) days and the first public hearing shall occur within 

thirty (30) days of the adoption of this Embracement Resolution. 

 Section 5. In accordance with Elections Code section 10010(a)(2), the Chief Executive 

Officer of FRHD is hereby authorized and directed to confer with FRHD legal counsel, and any 

consultants, and to create draft maps of the zones or districts for presentation to the Board at a 

public meeting to be held pursuant to Section 6 below. At the Board meeting, FRHD shall also 

publish and make available for release to the public draft maps for five (5) zones in the current 

FRHD boundaries, and shall also disclose the following: a) whether members of the FRHD Board 

will be elected in their districts at different times, b) provide for proposed staggered terms of office; 

c) identify the potential sequence of the elections. 

 Section 6. In accordance with Elections Code section 10010(a)(2), FRHD shall hold at least 

two (2) public hearings over a period of at least forty-five (45) days, at which the public shall be 

invited to provide input regarding the content of the draft map(s) and the proposed sequence of 

elections, if applicable. The first version of the draft map(s) shall be published at least seven (7) 

days before consideration at a public hearing. If the draft map(s) is revised at or following a 

hearing, it shall be published and made available to the public for at least seven (7) days before 

being adopted.  The first of these two public hearings shall be no later than thirty (30) days after 

the last Board meeting referenced in Section 4 above, or as soon thereafter as practicable. 

 Section 7.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 32100.1, the Chief Executive 

Officer of FRHD is hereby authorized and directed to subsequently coordinate and effectuate a 

public hearing on the proposed establishment of zones or districts for the districtbased elections, 

at which the Board shall provide for representation in accordance with demographic, including 

population and geographic factors of the entire geographic area of FRHD.  At this hearing, any 

elector of FRHD may present his or her views and plans in relation to the proposed zoning, but the 

Board shall not be bound thereby and its decision, in the resolution adopted, shall be final. This 

public hearing shall occur no later than forty-five (45) days after the last public hearing referenced 

in Section 4 above, or as soon thereafter as practicable. After this hearing, the Board will be 

presented with a resolution to divide the District into the zones or districts. 

 Section 8. If the Board elects to approve a resolution which divides the district into the 

zones or districts presented, the zones or districts shall be effective for the next district election 

after the resolution of the Board for which there is time to implement the zones and elections within 

the zones, or as provided for in Health & Safety Code section 32100.1. 

 Section 9.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

  

Page 71 of 72



 

3 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional 

Health District at a Regular meeting held this 14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll 

call vote: 

 AYES:  

 NOES:  

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:   

       ___________________________ 

       Gordon W. Tinker, President 

        Board of Directors 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________                                                                 

Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

 

Page 72 of 72




